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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Mindarika Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Mindarika Private Limited (“the Company™), which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements,

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information, The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s board report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Management's and Board of Director’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

’

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when il exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and Board of

Directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
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date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence; and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
I.  Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A a statement on

the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B”,

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation as at 31 March 2021 on its
financial position in its financial statements; - Refer Note 30 to the financial statements;
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ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in
specified bank notes during the period from 08 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have
not been made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year
ended 31 March 2021.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions
of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid
down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other
details under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm's Registration No.101248W/W-100022

bk Ao

Ankush Goel

Parter
Place: New Delhi Membership No. 505121
Date: 10 June 2021 UDIN: 21505121AAAAAZ7429
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Annexure A referred to in our Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Mindarika Private
Limited on the Financial Statements as of and for the year ended 31 March 2021

(@

(i)

iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(a)

(b)

(©)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained
proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed
assets (property, plant and equipment).

According to the information and explanations given to us, the fixed assets (property, plant
and equipment) are physically verified by the Management according to a phased programme
designed to cover all the items over a period of two years which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
programme, a portion of the fixed assets (property, plant and equipment) has been physically
verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed
on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of the immovable property which are freehold
and as disclosed in Note 4 on fixed assets (property. plant and equipment) are held in the
name of the Company. Further, in respect of immovable properties taken on lease and
disclosed as right-of-use-assets in the financial statements, the lease agreements are in the
name of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the inventories (excluding stock
lying with third party and goods in transit), has been physically verified by the management
during the year. For stock lying with third parties as at the year end, written confirmations
have been obtained from third party. Goods in transit, have been received/ delivered
substantially subsequent to year ended 31 March 2021. In our opinion, the frequency of such
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its business.
The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventories as compared to book records
were not material.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions
of paragraph 3(iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any
loans, or made any investments, or provided any guarantee, or security to the parties covered
under Section 185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposits from the public as mentioned in the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of
India and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and
rules framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company in respect of
products where, pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government, the maintenance of
cost records has been prescribed under sub section (1) of section of 148 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have
been made and maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination of such
records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.
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(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(a)

(b

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect
of undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Goods
and Services Tax (‘GST’), Service tax, Duty of customs, Duty of excise, Value added tax,
Cess and other material statutory dues, to the extent applicable, have been regularly deposited
during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities except few delays in respect
of income tax.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Goods and
service tax (‘GST’), Service tax, Duty of customs, Duty of excise, Value added tax, Cess and
any other statutory dues, as applicable to the Company, were in arrears as at 31 March 2021
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

Also refer note 30 (d) to the financial statements regarding management’s assessment on
certain matters relating to provident fund.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect of
Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, Duty of custom, Duty of excise, GST and Value added
tax which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks. The Company has neither taken any loans
or borrowings from financial institutions or government nor issued any debentures during the
year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any
moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer (including debt instruments) and
term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on
the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided by
the Company in accordance with provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required under applicable accounting standard under
Section 133 of the Act.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph 3(xv) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xvi) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. Accordingly, the
provisions of paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm's Registration No.101248W/W-100022

Aobuh fack

Ankush Goel
Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No. 505121
Date: 10 June 2021 UDIN: 21505121AAAAAZT7429
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s report on the financial statements of Mindarika Private
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021,

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement’s
section of our report of even date

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Mindarika
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 3|
March 2021, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding
of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
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Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of Management and directors of the
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper Management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedurés may
deteriorate.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm's Registration No.101248W/W-100022

Anhuwh Aud

Ankush Goel
Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No. 505121
Date: 10 June 2021 UDIN: 21505121AAAAAZ7429
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Mindarika Private Limited
Balance Shee( as a( 31 Maich 2021
(All figures are in T crore unless othemwise staled)
CIN:-U74899DLI1995PTC073692
Note As at Asat
31 Mureh 2021 31 Maweh 2020
ASSETS B
Non-current assets
Property . plant and equipment 4 141 05 159 61
Right-of-usc asscts 4A 1728 1898
Capital work in progress 4 126 B
Intangible asscts . N 789 10 46
Intangible assels under desclopment 3 090 017
Financial asscts
Loans 6 174 234
Other financial asscts 6A 040 -
Deferred tax assets (net) 15 069
Income tax asset (nct) 12A 369 383
Other non-currenl assets 7 | 0 111
176,57 196.49
Current assets
Tnyventories K 90 07 7736
Financial assets
Trade receivables 9 102 89 6021
Cash and cash cquivalents 10 22 89 25 06
Loans 6 070 086
Other financial assets 1 048 067
Other current assels 7 912 766
226.15 171.82
TOTAL ASSETS 40272 368.31
EQUITY AND LIABL
Equity
Equity share capital I13A 10 00 10 00
Other equity 13B 21197 - 183 78
2197 B 193.73
Liabilities
Non- enrrent liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 14 12 65
Lease liabilitics 4A 26 17 2795
Provisions 16 10 25 970
Deferred tax tiabilitics (net) 13 - 14]
Government grants 17 243 240
38.85 o 541
Current liabilities
Finnncial liabilities
Borrowings 14 952 005
Trade pay ables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 19 26 915
enterprises a
Tolal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 90 24 %2 96
enterprises and small enterprises
Lease liabilitics 4A 177 125
Other financial liabilitics 19 3719 1233
Other current liabilitics 20 1136 10 40
Provisions . 16 343 427
Current tax liabilitics (net) 12B 192 -
Govemnment grants 17 021 0 06
141.90 T 1041
TOTAL LIABILITIES 180.75 174.58
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 402.72 368.31 |
Significant Accounting Policies 3 I

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP of Dircctors of
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No : 101248W/W-100022

funsd

Ankush Gael

Partner i i IMevdior &
Membership No @ 505121 DIN No: 00014942 INN N 0322544
Place: New Delhi Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 10 June 2021 Date: 10 June 2021 Date: 10 June 2021

-
.
amar Aggatwal Brijesh Kumar
Chicf Financial Officer Company Seeretary

Mcmbership No 36070

Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: 10 June 2021 Date: 10 June 2021
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Mindarika Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Al figures are in ¥ crore unless otherwise stated)
CIN:-U74899DL1995PTC073692

Particulars

Note Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Income
Revenue from operations
Other income

Total income

Expenses
Cost of materials consumed

Purchase of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses

Total expenses
Profit before tax
Tax expense:
Current tax expense

Deferred tax income
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not to be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans
Income tax effect

Net other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

Basic and diluted earnings per share (in )
(Face value of ¥ 10 per share)

Significant Accounting Policies

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

lor BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No,:101248W/W-100022

Frdeush Gack

Ankush Goel
Partner
Membership No. : 505121

Place: New Delhi
Date: 10 June 2021

21 660,43 71134
22 0.45 0.72
660.88 712.06
23 430 67 456 18
24 165 279
25 012 33]
26 9232 104.01
27 303 614
28 28 84 31.88
29 57.36 73 81
613.99 678.12
46.89 33.94
15
14.71 12.64
(2.23) (4 86)
34.41 26.16
0.50 (0.57)
0.13) 0.15
0.37 (0.42)
34.78 25.74
32a 34.41 26.16
3

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

MindarikyReivate Lir i

Nirmal Kutdnr Miy
Managing Director
DIN No: 00014942

Place: Gurugram
Date: 10 June 2021

N

Sunjoy KMmar Agearwal
 hicf Financiod Effreer

Place: Gurugram
Date: 10 June 2021

De

Anil Simzh Makhloga
Divector
DIN Nop (03225184

Place: Gurugram
Date: 10 June 2021

—
Brijesh Kumar !
Company Secretary
Membership No. 36070

Place: Gurugram
Date: 10 June 2021




Mindarilka Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for the period ended 31 March 2021
(All figures are in 2 crore unless othenwisc stated)
CIN:-U74899DL1995SPTC073692
Year ended Yecar ended

Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit for the year before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Property, plant and equipment written off
Allowance for doubrtful trade receivables
Profit on property, plant and equipment sold / discarded
Liabilities/ provision wtitlen back
Allowance for doubtful trade receivables written back
Bad tiade receivables, other receivables and advances written off
Finance costs
[nterest income
Operating profit before working capital changes

Working capital adjustments:
(Increase)/Decrease in inventolies
(Increase)/Decrease in trtade receivables
Decrease in loans and other financial assets
(Increase)/Decrease in other assets
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables
Inciease in other financial liabilities

Increase in provisions

Increase in other liabililies/government grants

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid, net of refund
Net cash gencrated from operating activities

B. Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, capital work in progress and
intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest received
Net cash used in investing activities

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Repaynents of long-term borrowings
(Repayment) / Proceeds of short-term bortowings (net)
Finance cost paid
Payment of lease liabilities
Dividend paid
Dividend distribution tax
Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Notes to cash flow statement

Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 10)
Components of cash and cash equivalents:-

Cash on hand

Balance with banks:

- current account

- deposit with bank's maturity less than 3 months

46.89 3394
28 84 31.88
022 0.04
005 0.02
0.0]) (0.03)
(024) (0.53)
(0.02) (0.06)
013 0.39
3.03 6.14
(0.18) (0.09)
78.71 71.70
12.71) 14 80
(42.84) 2339
054 1.01
(1.43) 419
1763 450
002 026
061 021
1:15 421
(37.03) 43,56
41.68 115.26
(12.52) (12,67}
29.16 102.59
(10.47) (21.66)
0.13) 0.01
0.18 0.09
(10.42) (21.56)
(12.65) (12.52)
436 (24.40)
(3.03) (6.17)
(3.05) (4.02)
(6.54) (12.25)
= (2.52)
(2091} (61.87)
2.17) 19.15
25.06 5.91
22.89 25.06
004 007
885 2499
14.00 .
22.89 25.06




Mindarika Private Limited

Statement of Cash Flow for the period ended 31 March 2021
(All figures ate in 2 crore unless othenvise stated)
CIN:-U74899DL1995PTC073692

The Cash flow statement has been prepated undei (he indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Slandard-7 on Statement of Cash flows as notified

under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Significant Accounting Policies
As per our report of even date attached
I‘or BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No :101248W/W-100022
Ankush Goel

Purtner

Membership No : 505121

Place: New Delhi
Date: 10 June 2021
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A. Equity share capital

Particulars

Amount

Balance as at 1 April 2019

Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2020

Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2021

B. Other equity

1000

10 00

10.00

.

Particulars

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

i) Reserves and surplus
General reserve
Balance at the beginning and end of the year

Capital reserve
Balance at the beginning and end of the year

Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year
Transition impact of Ind AS 116, (Net of tax)
Restated balance as at 1 April 2020

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Less:- appropriations

Final dividend paid for 31 March 2020: Z 6 54 per share (31 March 2019
% 12 25 per share)

Dividend distribution tax on final dividend

Total

Significant Accounting Policies

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No :101248W/W-100022

Andough 4

Ankush Goel

6.55 6.55
0.09 0.09
177.09 173.91
: (7.79)
177.09 166.12
34 41 2616
037 (0.42)
6.54 12.25

- 252
205.33 177.09
211.97 183.73

Mindagika Priva

imited

Partner

Membership No. : 505121

Place: New Delhi
Date: 10 June 2021

Managing Dir€ctor
DIN No: 00014942

Place: Gurugram
Date: 10 June 2021

o

Sanjay Kumar Aggarwal
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: 10 June 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Anil Singh Makhloga
Director
DIN No: 03225184

Place: Gurugram
Date: 10 June 2021,

—

Brijesh Kumar
Company Secretary
Membership No. 36070

Place: Gurugram
Date: 10 June 2021




Mindarika Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

CIN:-U74899DL1995PT C073692

1.

Corporate information

Mindarika Private Limited ("the Company") is a private limited company incorporated on 9
November 1995 under the Companies Act. It is a venture between Minda Industries Limited and
Tokai Rika Co. Limited, Japan. The Company became subsidiary of Minda Industries Limited
w.e.f. 1 January 2018. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing of
auto electrical switches and other automotive components.

2. Basis of preparation

A. Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on
10 June 2021.

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 3.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest crores and two decimal

thereof, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
items:

Items Measurement Basis
Present value of defined benefit
obligations

(b) Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value

(c) Other financial assets and liabilities Amortised cost

(a) Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability

. Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The Company
faces uncertainties due to Covid 19 which have impacted the operations of the Company
adversely started from the month of March 2020. Management has assessed the impéct of existing
and anticipated effects of Covid 19 on the financial statements.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions td accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or

complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and
assumptions tur an Ull’fLQhC {Ilfferent than those originally assessed. Detailed information about

Gurugram ‘U / ﬁ
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each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information
about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

Judgements

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:
- Estimation of income tax (current and deferred) — Note 15

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including
judgment on whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax
assessment can involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time
periods.

- Estimated useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment — Note 4

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment on a written down value basis over
estimated useful lives of the assets except certain plant and equipment on which depreciation
is provided on straight-line basis. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived
based on an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual vatue at the
end of its life. The life is based on historical experience with similar assets as well as
anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology.
The estimated useful life is reviewed at least annually.

- Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies — Note 30
- Estimation of defined benefit obligation — Note 16

The cost of the defined benefit plans, compensated absences and the present value of the
defined benefit obligations are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate;
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation
and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact
on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current / non-current
classification. The Company has presented non-current assets and current assets before equity,

o : &L__C(}‘ ™
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non-current liabilities and current liabilities in accordance with Schedule I1I, Division I of
Companies Act, 2013 notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when:

a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period. ‘

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash or cash equivalents. The Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for
the purpose of classification of its assets and liability as current and non-current.

Based on the nature of products/activities of the Company and the normal time between
acquisition of assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has
determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and
liabilities as current and non-current.

3. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the period presented in these
financial statements.

A,

ii.

Foreign currency transactions
Initial recognition and settlement

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate
at the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions are generally recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Measurement at the reporting date

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated mto the

functional curr LTK)""E:TE;C gxdmnyc rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets an
/ Q3
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C.

that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at
the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Measurement of fair values .
A number of the accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both

financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used
in the valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
{unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market
data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall
into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in
its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant
to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values used in preparing these
financial statements is included in the following notes:-

- Note 33 — Fair value measurements

- Note 39 — Share based compensation

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is defined as any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and
a financial liability or equity instruments of another entity.

i

ii.

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at
fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets
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On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

a) Amortised cost; - These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Any gains or loss

or derecognition is are recognized in profit or loss.

b) FVTPL - These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including
any interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss. Financial assets are not
reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company

changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is

not designated as at FVTPL:

- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect

contractual cash flows; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that

are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on

a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial
assets at
FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and
losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in
statement of profit and loss.

Financial
assets at
amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Any gain or
loss on de-recognition is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability
is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value
and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit and
loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in statement of

profit and loss.
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iii.

iv.

Vi.

Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance
sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets,
the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged
or cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash
flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability
based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms
is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance
sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency risk
exposures.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives
are measured at fair value and changes therein are generally recognised in statement of profit
and loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
assets carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there

has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS
109, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the

receivables.
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D.

ii.

il

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any
directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use.

Property, plant and equipment under construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. Cost
of construction that relate directly to specific property, plant and equipment and that are
attributable to construction activity in general are included in capital work-in-progress.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in
statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation on building, tools and dies, and leasehold improvement is provided on straight line
method and depreciation on other items of property, plant and equipment is provided as per
written down value method basis, as per useful life of the assets estimated by the management,
which is equal to the useful life prescribed under Schedule I1 of the Companies Act, 2013 except
in the respect of following categories where life of the asset has been assessed based on the
technical advice, taking into account the nature of property, plant and equipment, the estimated
usage of the asset, the operating condition of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated
technologies changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc.:

Particulars Useful life as per Useful Management
Companies Act estimate of useful life
(years)
Moulds, tools and dies 15 5

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation on additions/ (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from / (upto) the date
on which asset is ready for use/ (disposed of).

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial y:ear—end and
adjusted if appropriate. Based on internal assessment and consequent advice, the management
believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which
management expects to use these assets.

Losses arising from retirement-otgains or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and
equipment which are c:-n‘r_i,g].g_ abebstarsrecognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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E. Intangible assets
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial

recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the technical know how over the useful life using the
straight line method and software using the written down value method and is included in
amortisation expense in statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

- Software 3-6 years
- Technical know how 6 years

Amortisation method, useful life and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial
year and adjusted if appropriate.

F. Impairment
i. Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss on financial assets measured
at amortised cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost
is credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have occurred.

Evidence that the financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower;

» the breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more; |
* it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial re-organisation; or

» the disappearance of active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses,
except for the following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses:

« Bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life
of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result
from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The Company
follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowanre; “mr\ndde receivables.
The application of simplified approach dog i ‘ompang-l +|-a<&l mem_m in credit
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ii.

risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit loss at
each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the
expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the
maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit lbsses are
measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows
due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects
to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company
determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written
off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s
procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed
at each reporting date to determine if there is indication of any impairment. If any indication
exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

Assets that do not generate independent cash flows are grouped together into cash generating
units (CGU).

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value inuse and its
fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognis/g:;i--j‘l"‘[(tw‘ua_;‘|'ying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. oy O TALY N “Xa B
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An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

G. Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee.

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from
non-lease components of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components. The Company recognises right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement
date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and
an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset
or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment
losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is
depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease
term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of use assets are
determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are
tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar
characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental
borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole.
The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value
guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease liability is subsequently
remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to
reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease
payments. The company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liaRility due to
modification as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss depending
upon the nature of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced
to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company
recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss.
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The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term leases
of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset
is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Transition to Ind AS 116

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment
Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17
leases, and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces a
single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting period beginning April 1, 2019
and applied the standard to its leases, retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially
applying the Standard, recognised on the date of initial application (April 1, 2019). Accordingly,
the Company has not restated comparative information, instead, the cumulative effect of initially
applying this standard has been recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings as on April 1, 2019.

For transition, the Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to leases
which are expiring within 12 months from the date of transition by class of asset and leases for
which the underlying asset is of low value on a lease-by-lease basis. The Company has also used
the practical expedient provided by the standard when applying Ind AS 116 to leases previously
classified as operating leases under Ind AS 17 and therefore, has not reassessed whether a
contract, is or contains a lease, at the date of initial application, relied on its assessment of whether
leases are onerous, applying Ind AS 37 immediately before the date of initial application as an
alternative to performing an impairment review, excluded initial direct costs from measuring the
right of use asset at the date of initial application and used hindsight when determining the lease
term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease. The Company has used a
single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics

. Inventories

Inventories which comprise raw materials and components, work-in-progress, finished goods,
tools, moulds, dies and fixtures — bought and manufactured, stores and spares are carried at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase (net of recoverable taxes, where applicable),
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

The basis of determining costs for various categories of inventories are as follows: -
Raw materials and components, stores and spares - Weighted average cast

Work-in-progress and finished goods - Material cost plus
appropriate share of labour,
manufacturing overheads.

Net realisable value is the eﬁtiln_:j,tcg:_’%lﬁn p price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and;;ljmst ated costs necessary to make the sa
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(i)

(iii)

(i)

The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of
related finished products. Raw materials and other supplies held for use in the production of
finished products are not written down below cost except in cases where material prices have
declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed their net realisable
value. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

Revenue recognition
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in
an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for
those products or services.

Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of product is recognized upfront at the point in time when the product is
delivered to the customer. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the
consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, price concessions and incentives, if any, as
specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from
customers.

Revenue from sale of services

Revenue from services is recognized in accordance with the terms of contract when the services
are rendered and the related costs are incurred.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to
be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the
amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

Share-based payment transactions

The employees of the Company are entitled to Minda Industries Limited (holding Company)
Employee Stock option scheme 2019. The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by
the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model. That cost
is recognised over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in
employee benefits expense. The amount recognised as expense is based on the estimate of the
number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected
to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of
awards that do meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date.
For share-based payment qu with non- vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of the
share-based payment is”medSyy Ld\ to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for
differences between uﬂrﬁ:" €d a @({.\\u al outcomes.
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(iii) Defined contribution plans

(iv)

)

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
specified contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts.
The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Employee Provident Fund (EPF)
and Employees’ State Insurance to Government and Superannuation to superannuation fund
administered by the Company. The Company’s contribution is recognized as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plan
Gratuity

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting
that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses
are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The Company determines the net interest
expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period
to the then- net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net
defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit
payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are
recognised in statement of profit and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that-relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss
on curtailment is recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss. The Company
recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement
OCCUTS.

Other long term employee benefits
Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and
utilise it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment.
Since, the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be
utilized wholly within twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a
long-term employee benefit. The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences
in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The
obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit
credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss in the
period in \\ilggﬂu...ll.i_e___y arise.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
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K.

(®

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached
conditions. Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to statement of profit and
loss on a systematic basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other
income.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period
of the facility to which it relates. ‘

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as
other gains/(losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a
breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the
reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting
date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting
period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a
consequence of the breach.

. Provisions and contingencies

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are recognised at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date.

Warranty

A provision for warranties is recognized when the underlying products are sold. The provision is
based on technical evaluation, historical warranty data and a weighting of all the possible
outcomes by their associated probabilities.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

CIN:-U74899DL1995PTC073692
(i) Contingencies

Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines,
penalties, etc. are recognized when it is probable that a liability has been incurred, and the amount
can be estimated reliably.

N. Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit and loss
except to the extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received
after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates
(and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax return with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on
a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
the assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax
credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence
that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of history of recent losses, the
Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary
differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available
against which such deferred tax asset can be realized.

Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are
recognised / reduced to the extent that it is probable / no longer probable respectively that the
related tax benefits will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the
same tax authorities.

O. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity
sharcholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity and dilutive
equity equivalent shares outstanding during the year end, except where the results would be anti-
dilutive.

P. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation
whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but
are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote. Contingent assets are
neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are
assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise,
the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

Q. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker.

An operating segment is a component that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any
of the other components, and for which discrete financial information is available.

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of auto electrical switches & other
automotive components. Accordingly, the Company’s activities/ business is reviewed regularly
by the Company’s Board of directors from an overall business perspective, rather than reviewing
its products/services as individual standalone components.

Based on the dominant source and nature of risks and returns of the Company, management has
identified its business segment as its primary reporting format.

R. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short term deposits, as defined above.

S. Recent accounting pronouncements

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) through a notification, amended
Schedule IIT of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division I, 11 and III of
Schedule 11T and are applicable from April 1, 2021. The Company is evaluating the effect of the
amendments on |fsl$ﬂ }q{rgll‘xl_mu'.mwls.
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Mindarika Private Linited

Notes forming part of (he financial statements for (he year ended 31 March 2021
(All lipwes are in T croie unless athervise slated)
CIN:-U74899DL1995PTC073692

4A  Right-ofl-use assets and Lease liabilities

(i) Following are the changes in the carrying value of right-ol-use assets for (he v car ended 31 March 2021

Fartlenlans Leasehold Land Building Plind o maehi Total

Asal | April 2019 232 E 232
Add: Adjustment on account of Ind AS 116 : 21 85 2185
Less: Disposals /adj during the vear .00 (3 00)
As at 31 March 2020 2.32 18.85 = 21.17
Add: Adjustment on account of Ind AS 116 - .
Add: Addilions made during the s ear = 605 605
Less: Disposals /adjusiments during the \ear - (648) {6 48)
As al 31 March 2021 2.32 12.37 6.05 20.74
Accumulated Depreciation

Asal | April 2019 006 - - 0406
Add Depreciation charge for (he viear - 213 - 213
As at 31 Marel 2020 0.06 2,13 - 2.19
Ak Depregintion ehaepe for the vear [T 118 007 |27
As at 31 March 2021 0.08 331 0.07 3.46
Net carrying value

As at 31 March 2021 2.24 9.06 598 17.28
As at 31 March 2020 226 16.72 - 18.98

(i) On adoption of IND AS 116. the Company recognised lease liabilitics in relation (o leases which had previously classified as 'operaling leases’ under the principles
of IND AS 17, Leases These liabililies were measured at the presenl value of he remaining lease payments. discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate as of 1 April 2019 The weighted average lessee's incremental borrowiny rate applied Lo the lease liabilities on | Apiil 2019 was 8 5%

In applying IND AS 116 for the first lime, (e group has used the ollowing practical expedients permilied by (he standard:-

- applying single discount rale Lo a portiolio of leases with reasonably similar characlerstics

- relying on previous assessments on whelher leases are onerous as an allernalive (o performing an impairment review there were no onerous contract as at
1 Aprl 2019

- accounting for operating leases with the remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at | April 2019 as short lerm leases

- excluding inilial direcl costs for the measurement of the righl-ol-use assel al (he date ol initial application, and

- using hindsight in determining the lease term where the contracl conlains options lo extend or terminate the lease

The Company has used hindsight's in determining the lease lerm where the conlracl contain oplion lo extend or lerminate the lease The difference between future
minimum lease rental (oward non cancellable operaling lease reporled as at 31 March 2019 compared to lease liability as accounted as at 1 April 2019 is primarily
due to inclusion of present value of the lease payment for the cancellable term of leases and reduction due Lo discounting of lease liabilities as per requirement of
Ind AS 116

(iii) Details of Rent expenses

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Expenses refaled to shorl term lease 096 097
096 097

The following lable represents a maturity analysis of expected undiscounted cashflow for leasc liabilities as on 31 March 2021

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Within one year 408 400
Within one -lwo vear 424 420
Within (wo- (hree vear 44| 441
Wilhin (hree- five year 935 948
More (han five vears 1902 20514
Total lease payment 41.10 42.59
The reconciliation of lease liabilities is as [ollow:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Opening Balance 2920 -
Transilion impact of Ind AS 116 - 3343
Addition during the y ear 605
Lease modificalion impacl 626 330
Amounl recognized in stalement of profil & loss as inlerest expenses 200 268
Pay men of lease liabilities 305 4.02
Closing Balance 27.94 29,20
(iv) The lollowing is the break up of currenl and non-current lease liabilities as at 31 March 2021
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Currenl |ease liabililies 177 125
Non - Current lease liabilities 2617 2795
Total 27.94 29.20

(v} The Company has adopled Ind AS 116 effective annual reporling period beginning | April 2019 and applied (he standard (o ils lease using modified relrospeclive
approach, with the cummulative effect of inilially applying the standard. recognised on the date of initial application (1 April 2019) Accordingly. the Company has
not restated comparalive informalion, instead the cumulatiy e effect of initially applying this standard has resulted in recognising right-of-use assels of ¥ 21 85 crores,
and a corresponding lease liability of Z 33 83 crores by adjusting retained earning of 2 7.79 crores, (nel of Deferred lax created ¥ 4.19 crores) as al | April 2019
During the year, due to modificalion in lease contract, ROU has reduced by 2 648 crores (previous vear 2 3 00 crores) In (he Statement of Profil and Loss for (he
vear ended 31 March 2021. the nature of expenses in respect of operaling lease has changed from lease rent (in other expenses) into deprecialion cos! against the
right-of -use assels and finance cos( against interesl on lease liability

— -
i has elected Lo apply practical expie ot i Seqn
(11) The Company has elected lo apply practical exp .h;grﬁn&-‘nl fl\ 1)

and machinery 4 \
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ungen) )
i
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All figures are in T crore unless otherwise stated)
CIN:-U74899DL1995PTC073692

5 Intangible assets

a. Reconciliation of carrying amount

Particulars Software Technical know Total
how
Gross carrying value
As at 1 April 2019 8.20 621 14.42
Add: Additions during the year 0.12 351 3.62
Less: Disposals / adjustments during the year (0.03) - (0.03)
As at 31 March 2020 8.29 9.72 18.01
Add: Additions during the year 0.10 0.17 027
Less: Disposals / adjustments during the year B
As at 31 March 2021 8.39 9.89 18.28
Accumulated amortisation
As at 1 April 2019 2.40 1.88 428
Add: Amortisation charge for the year 2.23 1.07 3.30
Less: On disposals / adjustments during the year (0.02) - (0.02)
As at 31 March 2020 4.61 2.95 7.56
Add: Amortisation charge for the year 1.38 1.45 2.83
Less: On disposals / adjustments during the year -
As at 31 March 2021 5.99 4.40 10.39
Net carrying valuc
As at 31 March 2021 2.40 5.49 7.89
As at 31 March 2020 3.68 6.77 10.46
As at As at

b. Intangible assets under development
- Technical know how

& & CO b
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31 March 2021

31 March 2020

0.90

0.17

0.90

0.17
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6 Loans
(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

Non-current

Security deposits-others

Security deposits-related parties (refer note 38)
Loan to employees

Current

(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)
Security deposits

Loan to employees

As at

31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

1.36 1.78
0.27 0.50
0.11 0.06
1.74 2.34
0.03 0.24
0.67 0.62
0.70 0.86
2.44 3.20

The Company's exposure to credit risk related to security deposits and loan to employees are disclosed in rote 34.

6A Other Financial Assets
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Non-current
Bank deposits (due to mature after 12 months from the reporting date)

7 Other assets
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Non-current

Capital advances

- related party (refer note 38)

- other than related party

Prepaid expenses

Balance with government authorities

Current

Advances to suppliers

- related party (refer note 38)

- other than related party

Prepaid expenses

Balance with government authorities
Others

/&
/\

o) T A/C,

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

0.40

0.40

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

0.32 0.43
1.33 0.63
0.02 0.04

- 0.01
1.67 1.11
0.54 0.45
5.09 3.13
1.74 1.37
1.74 2.70
0.01 0.01
9.12 7.66
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As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

8 Inventories

(valued at lower of cost or net realivable value)

Raw matetrial and components 57.69 4616

[Includes goods in transit ¥ 10.24 crores (Previous year 2 10 85 crores)]

Work in progress 6.40 6.11

Finished goods 15.34 907

Tools, moulds, dies and [ixtures - bought out and manufactured 559 12.27

Stores and spares 505 375
90.07 77.36

The write down of inventories to net realisable value during the year amounted to T 1.07 crores (Previous year ¥ 1.79 crores). The write down is
included in cost of material consumed or changes in inventories of finished poods and work-in-progress

As at

As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

9 Trade receivables

10

11

Unsecured and consideted good

- from related parties (refer note 38) 1429 13.74
- from others 88 60 46 47
Doubtful
- from others 0.04 0.04
Loss allowance (0.04) (0.04)
102.89 60.21°

a) Short term borrowings ate secured by current assets including book debts. Please refer note 14
b) The Company's exposure to credit and currency risks, and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in note 34
¢) There are no debtors where there is significant increase in credit risk or credit impairment

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

- current account 885 2499

- deposit with bank's maturity less than 3 months 14.00 -

Cash on hand 0.04 0.07
22.89 25,06

The disclosures regarding details of specified bank notes held and transacted during 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been made
since the requirement does not pertain to financial year ended 31 March 2021

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Other financial assets
(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

Export and other incentives receivable 048 067
Interest accrued on fixed deposits # 0,00 0.00
0.48 0.67

# Amount is below rounding off threshold
The Company's exposure to credit risk related to export and other incentive receivable and interest accrued on fixed deposits are disclosed in note

34

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

12A Income tax asset (net)

Non-current
100,48 100 48

Advance Tax
Provision of Tax (96.79) (96.65)
3.69 3.83
12B Current tax liabilities (net)
Provision of Tax 14,90 -
Advance Tax (12 98) -
1.92 -

P -‘g“c“--\____
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13A  Share capital
1) Details of share capital

Authorised share capital

15,000,000 (31 March 2020: £5,000,000) equily shares o[ T 10
each

Issued, subscribed aud paid up

10,000,000 (31 Maich 2020 10,000,000) equity shares of T 10
each fully paid up

Asat
31 March 2021

Asal
31 March 2020

b) Reconciliation of outstanding equity shares at the beginning aud at the end of (e reporting year

As at 1 April 2019

Add: Shares issued during the year
As at 31 March 2020

Add: Shares issued during the year
As at 31 March 2021

¢) Sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the sharcholder

Tokai Rika Co, Limited, Japan

Tokai Rika Co , Limited, Japan (% held)
Minda Industries Limited

Minda Industries Limited (% held)

Mi Nirmal K Minda
Mr Nirmal K Minda (% held)

c) Shares lield by holding company

Name of the sharcliolder

Minda Industries Limited
Minda Industries Limited (% held)

d) Rights, preferences and restrictions atiached to equity shares

1500 1500
10 00 10 00
1000 10.00
Number of Amoun|
shares {Tin Crore)
1,00,00,000 10 00
1,00,00,000 10 00
1,00,00,000 10 00
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
37,00,000 37,00,000
37% 37%
51,00,000 51,00,000
51% S51%
12,00,000 12,00,000
12% 12%
As al As al
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
51,00,000 51,00,000
51% 51%

The Company has only one class of equily shares having a par value of 10 per share Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vole per share The
Company may declaie and pay dividends in Indian rupees The final dividend proposed by the Board of Directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting

In the event of liquidation of the Company. the holders of equily shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders

¢) There is no bonus issue or buy back of equity shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date

13B  Other equitly

Particulars oy =
rticu 31 March 2021

i) Reserves and surplus

General reserve
Balance al the beginning and end of the year 6.55 6.55

Capital reserve
Balance at the beginning and end of the year 0.09 0.09

Retained earuing

Balance at the beginning of the year 177 09 173 91
Transition impact of Ind AS 116, (Net of tax) E (1.79)
Restated balance as at 1 April 2020 177.09 166.12
Profit for the year 34 4] 26 16
Other comprehensive income, net of lax 037 (042)
Less:- appropriations
Final dividend paid for 31 March 2020: X 6 54 per share (31 Match 2019 654 1225
% 12 25 per share)
Dividend distribution tax on final dividend - 2252,
205.33 177.09
Total 211.97 18373 ¢
Dividends
The followiny dividends were declared and paid by the Company during the year
Particulars For the year cnded For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Final dividend o the year 2009220 e 654 per equity share (Final dividond lotthe year th54 12:25
2018-19 : Rs 12 25 per equily share )

s - 252

. ?{dc 31 March 2021
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Mindarika Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al figures are in ¥ crore unless otherwise stated)
CIN:-U74899DL1995PTC073692

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
14 Borrowings
Non-current borrowings
Term loans fiom banks
Secured
— Rupee loan from banks - 16 .87
— Foreign curtency loan ftom banks - 0.89
- 17.76
Less: Amount included under ‘other financial liabilities' (refer note 19) - 511
- 12.65
Current borrowings
Loans from banks
Secured
— Loans repayable on demand # 9.52 0.05
9.52 0.05
9.52 12.70

# includes obligation against bills discounted and remaining unseftled as at 31 March 2021

Information about the Company's exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and liquidity risks is included in note 34

a. Long term loan repayment schedule and security

Outstanding Outstanding
Nature of security Terms of repayment and rate of interest as on as on
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
ECB loan from Standard Chartered Bank |Rate of interest - 2 25%-+Libor - 0.89
a) Sanctioned amount § 4,000,000
b) Secured by: Principle amount received in two instalments
- First exclusive mortgage of the repayable in 17 equal quarterly instalments
Land/Building situated at Chennai starting from March 2016 and April 2016 (i e
12 months after first instalment of the loan)
- First exclusive charge on assets
financed out of external commercial Last instalment was due in April 2020
borrowing (ECB)
Term loan from HSBC bank Rate of interest - 3 month MCLR +0 05% - 16 87
a) Sanctioned amount ¥ 32 50 Ciore
b) Secured by: Repayable in 16 quarterly equal instalments
- First charge on the immovable property, |starting from April 2019 (i e 12 months from
plant and equipment of Gujarat plant the date of first disbursement)
with minimum asset cover of 1.25x
Last instalment was due in April 2023
Total - 17.76
't "". ;O “\
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Mindarika Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Al figures are in X crore unless otherwise stated)

CIN:-U74899DL1995PTC073692

b. Current borrowings repayment schedule and security

Nature of Bank and Security

Terms of repayment and rate of interest

Outstanding as on
31 March 2021

Outstanding as on
31 March 2020

HSBC Bank * Rate of interest 31 March 2020 : 11 .45% - 0.05
HDFC Bank # Not applicable 9.52 -
Total 9.52 0.05

* Current borrowing from banks are secured by first pari passu charge on cuirent assets of the Company. Second charge on movable property, plant and

equipment of the Company, both present & future. The above loan are repayable on demand.

# Includes obligation against bills discounted and remaining unpaid as at year ended 31 March 2021

Net Debt Reconcilation

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movement in net debt for each of the periods presented.

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Cash and cash equivalents 22.89 25.06
Current borrowings (9.52) (5.16)
Non-current bonowings - (12,65)
Net Debt 13.37 7.25
Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities .
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Non-current Current Non-current Current
borrowings borrowings* borrowings borrowings*
Balance as at the beginning of the year 12.65 516 2517 2956
Changes from financing cash flows
Repayment of non-current borrowings (12.65) (5.16) (12.52) -
Proceeds from/iepayments of current borrowings (net) # 952 - (24 40}
9.52 12.65 5.16

Balance as at the end of the year

* current bortowings include current maturities of non-current borrowings
# proceeds from current borrowings includes obligation against bills discounted and remaining unpaid as at year ended 31 March 2021
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Mindavika Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial stafements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Al figures arc in T cioie uniess otherwisc stated)
CIN:-U74899DL1995PTC073692

15 Income tax

a. Amount recognised in stalement of profit and loss

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Current tax expense 1471 1264
Deforred tax credit . (223) (4 86)
Tax expense 12.47 7.78
b, Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Before tax Tax {expense) / Net of tax Before (ax Tax (expense) / Net of tax
benefit benelit
Remeasurements of defined bencfit plan 030 (0 13) 037 ©57) 0lIs (042)
0.50 {0.13) 0.37 (057) 015 (042)
. Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 Maich 2020
Rate (%) Amount Rate (%) Amount
Profit before tax 46 89 3394
Tax using company's domestic tax rate 2517% 1180 25 17% 850
Effect of:
Earlicr year tax adjustments 028% 013 2352% 086
Non-deductible expenses / income 1 15% 034 062% 021
Transition impact of Ind AS-116 000% . 345% 117
Rate change impact on temporarny differences 000% - -8.74% (297)
Effective tax rate 26.59% 12.48 23.03% 7.78
d. Deferred tax liabilities
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Deferred tax assets :-
Provisions for employee benefits 316 335
Provision for doubtful debts 001 001
Ind AS 116 adjustment 714 260
Deferred Government Grant 066 062
Others 007 013
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets (10 35) 812)
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (net) 0.69 (1.41)
Transition impact of Ind AS 116 . 419
Reinstated balance 069 (5 60)
Deferred tax (charge)/ created during the year 210 486
e. Movement of temporary differences
As at Trasition Movement in Movement in As at Movement in Movement in As at
1 April 2019 impact in statement of statement of 31 March  statement of  statement of other 31 March 2021
retained earning  profit and loss other 2020 profit and loss  comprehensive
comprehensive income
income
Praperiy, plint and cquipmuont and intangible asscts (net) {1460} - A - (8.12) 223 {10L35)
Incd AS 116 “419) 260 260 454 714
Deftered Government Grant . - 062 . 062 004 - 066
Prowisions for employee benefits 39 - (074) 015 335 019) (0 13) 316
Prowision for doubtful debts 003 - (0.02) - 001 000 - 00l
Ol 003 - 010 E 013 {0.06) - 007
(1060} 14,19) 0.04 0.15 [141) 210 .13 0.69
¢ The G of India, on Scptember 20. 2019, vide Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019. inserted a new Scction 115BAA in the Income Tax Act, 1961, which gives option (o the Company to pay

Income Tax at reduced rates as per the provisions/ conditions defined in the said scction The Company has paid the lax according to the new rates from financial year 2019-20 onwards

—

&

Co

-

k.
¢
i

Gurugram)-g




moEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEsseS

Mindarika Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al figures are in  crore unless otherwise slated)

CIN:-U74899DL.1995PTC073692

16 Provisions

Non-current
Provision for employce benefits

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

- Provision for compensated absences (refer note 33) 1.99 2.21
- Provision for gratuity (refer note 33) 6.61 629
Other provisions
- Provision for warranty* 1.65 1.20
10.25 9.70
Current
Provision for employec benefits
- Provision for compensated absences (refer note 33) 2.36 1.80
Other provisions
- Provision for warranty* 1.47 2.47
3.83 4.27
14.08 13.97
Movement in other provisions Amount Amgunt
Balance at the beginning of the year 3.67 4.33
Provisions made during the year 0.14 0.82
Provisions utilised during the year (0.69) (1.48)
3.12 3.67

Balance at the end of the ycar

* The Company has made a warranty provision on account of sale of products with warranty clause. These provisions are based on
management’s best estimate and past trends. Actual expenses for warranty are charged directly against the provision. Un-utilised

provision is reversed on expiry of the warranty period

]
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Mindarika Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All figures are in T crore unless otherwise stated)
CIN:-U74899DL1995PTC073692

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

17 Government grants

Opening balance 2.46 0.39
Add: Grants received during the year (refer note 31) 0.40 2.37
Less: Released to statement of profit and loss (0.22) (0.30)
Closing balance 2.64 2.46
Current portion 0.21 0.06
Non current portion 2.43 2.40

18 Trade payables

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 19.26 9.15
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 90.24 82.96
enterprises

109.50 92.11

(i) All trade payables are 'current'
(ii) For trade payables to related parties refer note 38.

(iii) The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in note 34.

(iv) Disclosure as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 based on the information

available with the Company is as follows:

Particulars

As at

As at

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

The amounts remaining unpaid to suppliers as at the end of the year 19.26 9.15
- Principal

- Interest

The amount of payments made under the Act beyond the appointed day 4.09 5949
during the year

The amount of interest paid under the act beyond the appointed day during 0.21 0.09
the year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 0.02 0.05
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the

year) but without adding the interest specified under the Act

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 0.02 0.05

accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under the Act

Dues to micro and small enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of

information available with the management.




Mindarika Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All figures are in T crore except share data and unless otherwise stated)
CIN:-U74899DL1995PTC073692

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
19 Other financial liabilities
Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer to note 14) - 5.11
Employee related payables 3.79 371
Interest accrued on borrowings but not due = 0.01
Payables for property, plant and equipment - 3.44
Derivative liability - 0.06
3.79 12.33

The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to above financial liabilities is disclosed in note 34.

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
20 Other current liabilities
Advances from customers 8.04 7.64
Statutory dues 3.32 2.76
11.36 10.40
/R ¢
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Mindarika Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All figures are in T crore unless otherwisce stated)
CIN:-U74899D1.1995PTC073692

21 Revenue from operations

Sale of goods
Sale of services

Other operating revenue:
Scrap sales

Export incentives
Government grant

The Company is following Ind AS 115 — 'Revenue {rom contracts with customers'. As per the contractual arrangement entered with

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

64927 707.08
5.33 1.01
654.60 708.09
2.59 2.64
0.18 0.31
3.06 0.30
5.83 3.24
660.43 711.34

the customers, there are no incentive given to the Company and revenue is recognised as per the contractual price.

Contract price
Less: Sales discounts
Total revenue from operations

22 Other income
Interest income on fixed deposits and others
Liabilities/ provision written back

Provisions for doubtful trade receivables written back
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipments (net)

23 Cost of materials consumed

Opening stock of raw materials and components
Add : Purchases of raw materials and components

Less : Closing stock of raw materials and components

24 Purchase of stock-in-trade

Purchase of stock-in-trade

661.56 712.92

1.13 1.58

660.43 711.34

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

0.18 0.09
0.24 0.53
0.02 0.06
0.01 0.03
0.45 0.72

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

46.16 56.10

442.21 446.24

488.37 502.34

57.69 46.16

430.67 456.18

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

2.79




Mindarika Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All figures are in ¥ crore unless otherwise slated)

CIN:-U74899DL1995PT (073692

25 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

a. Inventories at the end of the Year
- Work in progress
- Finished goods (included tools, moulds, dies & fixtures - bought ont and manufactured)

b. Inventories at the beginning of the Year
- Work in progress
- Finished goods (included tools, moulds, dies & fixtures - bought out and manufactured)

Changes in inventorics of finished goods and work in progress (b-a)

26 Employce benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 33)
Employee stock option expenses (refer note 39)

Staff welfare expenses

27 Finance costs
Interest expense on:
(i) borrowings *
(1i) trade payables
(iii} lease interest
(iv) delayed payment of taxes and duty

* net of revenue subsidy of Rs 0.92 (Previous year Nil)

28 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

6.40 611
2093 21.34
2733 2745

6.11 691
21,34 23.84
27.45 30.75

0.12 3.30

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

83,61 9259
6.22 7.10
014 0.12
235 420
92.32 104.01
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

016 3.39
0.17 005
2.00 268
0.70 002
3.03 6.14

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

2474 26 45
1.27 213
2,83 330

28.84 31.88
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Mindarika Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All ligures are in € crore unless otherwise stated)
CIN:-U74899DL1995PTC073692

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
29 Other expenses
Consumption of stores and spares 790 11.17
Power and fuel 783 9.44
Rent (refer nole 4A) 0.96 0.97
Repair and maintenance 697 9.03
Insurance 1.80 1.72
Rates and taxes 053 048
Travelling and conveyance 5.60 688
Packing and forwarding expenses 477 529
Warranty expenses 014 0.83
Royalty 4.06 420
Legal and professional 11.25 16.51
Payment to auditor's (refer note (i) below) 0.50 0.66
Property, plant and equipment written off 022 0.04
Bad trade receivables, other receivables and advances written off 0.13 0.39
Provision for doubtful trade receivables 0.05 0.02
Corporate social responsibility expenses (refer note (ii) below) 119 1.35
Net loss on foreign currency transaction and translation 0.06 046
Miscellaneous expenses (refer note (iii) below) 3.40 437
57.36 : 73.81
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Notes:-i
Payments to the auditor's comprises |
As auditors (excluding taxes)
Statutory audit [ees 045 044
Certification [ees and others 003 0.16
Reimbursement of expenses 002 0.06
0.50 0.66
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Notes:-ii
Details of corporate social responsibility expenditure
a. Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 119 135
b. Amount spent during the year:
(i) Construction / acquisition of any asset - -
(i) On purpose other than (i) above 1.19* 135
* Pertains to amount paid to Suman Nirmal Minda Charitable Trust ("the Trust") and it includes Rs. 046 crores being unspent by the Trust till 31 March 2021
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Notes:-iil
Payment made by the Company to the political parties in accordance with Section 182 of Companies
Act, 2013 during the year as follows:-
Payment to political parties (included under the head Miscellaneous expense) 1.00
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Private Limited
1g part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Al figures are in T erore unless otherwise stated)
CIN:-U74899DL1995PTC073692

30

(a)

Contingent liabilities and commitments
{tor the extent not provided for)

Contingent liabilities

Partivaliars As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(b)

(©

(d)

3

32a

32b

Indirect tax malters (refer note i below) - E
Total L E

During financial year 2018-2019, Direclorate General of Goods and Services Tax Intelligence issued a Show Cause Nolice ("SCN") on the Company alleging
that the cost of drawing/design/specification received free of cost from one of (he customers for manufacture of moulds/dies/parts/components was supposed to
be included in the cost of moulds/dies/parts/components (as the transaction value) in supply made to the customer Accordingly, the SCN proposed as to why
Central Excise duty of 7 17 crores for the period November 2013 to June 2017 under the provision of Section 11A (4) of Central Excise Act (“CEA") along
with penalty should not be demanded and recovered from the Company The Company, based upon inpuls from its lax expert, strongly believes thal this SCN
is not sustainable

Capital commitments (net of advance)
Estimated amount of conlracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for net of advances Z 3 B0 crores (Previous year X 0 22 crores)

Manesar plant of the Company is situated at Village Nawada Fatehpur, P O Sikanderpur Badda, Gurugram, Haryana admeasuring of 6 25 acies of land which
is notified under the residential zone by the authorities in the earlier period. The Company is yet (o receive any notice from Town and Country Planning, to
vacate this land and also, received factory license till 31 December 2021 The Company has filed application along with the Holding Company for grant of
license under Affordable Group Housing (AGH) scheme for part of a land localed in Manesar Plant area for which approval had also been received
Subsequently, the Company and the holding Company applied for its efitire Manesar Plant area under new scheme namely Deen Dayal Jan Awas Yojna
(DDJAY) including migration of license received under Affordable Group Housing scheme The Company has also entered into a coltaboration agreement
with its holding Company for execution of this group housing project in the previous year

The Company has entered into 99 year lease agreemenls with Shreeaumji Real Estate SEZ Pvt. Ltd , Spectrum Techno Construction Pyt Lid and Shreeaumji
Habitation Pvi Ltd (related parties) for a land bank in Farrukhnagar, Haryana and is in the process of applying for change of land use (CLU) for this land for
industrial use purpose. In this respect, Board of Direclors of the Company has also given approval in the Board meeting held on 22nd July, 2019 The
Company is of the view Lhal all necessary dues has been paid to authorities and at this stage, there is no impact of this matter on the financial statements

The Hon'ble Supreme Court of India (*SC”) by their order dated February 28, 2019, set out the principles based on which allowances paid (o the employees
should be identified for inclusion in basic wages for the purposes of computation of Provident Fund contribution The Company is of the view that there are
interprelative challenges and uncertainty, including estimaling the amount retrospectively Pending clarity regarding the impact for past periods (before
Supreme Court judgement), if any, is not reliably ascertainable at this stage and hence, no financial impact has been considered in the financial statements

During the earlier year, the Company had received approval under Modified Special Incentive Package Scheme ("MSIPS") from the Ministry of Electronics
and Information Technology ("the Ministry") for its manufacturing plant in Gujarat The Company has received approval for claim of T 0 40 crores (Previous
year Z 042 crores) These grants are considered as capital grants and are accounted as capital grants and is amortised over the useful life of property, plant and
equipment

The Company has also received revenue subsidy of ¥ 3 49 crores (Previous Year Z Nil) and capital subsidy Z Nil (Previous year ¥ 1 95 crores) under Gujarat
State Electronics Policy The revenue subsidy is booked under Statement of Profit or Loss whereas capital subsidy is accounted as capital grants and is
amortised over the useful life of property, plant and equipment

The Company has also booked grant of ¥ 024 crores (Previous year  Nil) on accrual having filed claim for the interest subsidy under Gujarat Stalc
Electronics Policy for the period September 2020 to December 2020

Earning per share
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Profit for the year attributable to the equity shareholders (% in crores) 3441 2616
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share (face value 10 per share) (in 3)* 3441 2616

* There are no dilutive share

Capital management

The Company's objectives when managing capilal are to

- safeguard their abilily to continue as a going concern, so that they can cantinue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

« mainltain an optimal capilal structure to reduce the cost of capilal

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base 5o as Lo maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain the future development of
the business

In order to maintain or adjust the capiltal structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, relurn capital lo shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debl, consistent with others in the industry The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is calculated as:

Net debt (tolal borrowings ) divided by “Total equity” (as shown in the Balance Sheel)

As at As at

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Interest bearing loans and borrowings - 1781
Others 933 -
Total debts 9.52 17.81
Equity share capital 10 00 1000
Other equily 21197 18373
Tolal equity 221.97 e 193.73

o0 L~
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Mindarika Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2021
(Al figures are in  crore unless otherwise stated)
CIN:-U74899DL1995SPTC073692

33 Employce benefits
a) Assets and liabilities relating to employce benelits

Non-current

As at

31 March2021

As at
31 March 2020

Provision for gratuity (661) (629)
Provision for compensated absences (199) 221
Total (8.60) (8.50)
Current

Provision for compensated absences (236) (1 80)
Total employee benefit liabilities (2.36) (1.80)
Grand Total (10.96) (10.30)

In case of employees with age above the retirement age indicated below, the retirement is assumed to happen immediately and valuation is done

accordingly
b) Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefil gratuity plan, governed Ly the Payment of Gratuily Act, 1972 The scheme provides for a lump sum payment to
vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment Vesling oceurs upon completion of five years of service

Tvpe of Plan Defined Benefit
Salary for calculation of pratuity Last drawn salary
Normal Retirement Ape 58 years

Vesting Period 5 Years

Benefit on normal retirement Same as per the provisions of the Payment of

Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended from time to time)

Benefit on early retirement / termination /  |Same as normal retirement benefit based on the
resignatton/ withdrawal service upto the date of exit

Same as normal retirement benefit and no vesting
period conditions applies

Benefit on death in service

Limit % 20.00,000
Gratuily Formula 15/26 * Last drawn salary * Number of completed
years

The above defined benefit plan exposes the Company to following risks:

Interest rate risk:

The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds If bond yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend to

increase

Salary inflation risk:
Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation

Demographic risk:

The Company has used certain mortality and attrilion assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Company is exposed to the risk of actual experience

turning out to be worse compared to the assumption

Regulatory risk:

Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payments of Gratuity Act,1972 (as amended from time to time) There is risk of
change in regulations requiring higher gratuity payouts (e g Increase in the maximum limit on gratuity of ¥ 20,00,000)

The Company actively monitors how the duration and the expected yield of the investments are matching the expected cash outflows arising from the
employee benefit obligations The Company has not changed the processes used to manage its risks from previous periods The funds are managed by

specialised team of Life Insurance Corporation of India

Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset) / liability

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Defined benefit obligation 172 1102
Fair value of plan assets 5101 473
Defined benefit liability 6.61 6.29

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Balance at the beginmng of the year 11.02 9 8Q’
Current service cost 137 137
Interest cost 075 072
Berefits paid (0 98) (1.50)
Actuarial gain (loss) recognised in other comprehensive income

- experience adjustments (0 50) 021

- changes in financial assumptions 005 042
Balance at the end of the year 11.71 o 1102
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Mindarika Private Limited -

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(ANl figures are m X crore unless otherwise stated)
CIN:-U74899DL1995PTC073692

Employee benefits (Contd.)

Changes in fair value of plan assets are as lollows: As at ’ As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 473 436
Interest meome of plan ossels 038 037
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 5.11 4.73
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Expense recognised in statement of profit and loss

Current service cost 137 1.37
Net interest cost/ {income) 037 0.35
1.74 1.72

Remcasurcments recognised in other comprehensive income

Actuarial (gain) / loss arising during the year (045} 0.62

(0.45) 0.62

Defined benefit obligations

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate (per annum) 6 80% 685%
Future salary growth rate (per annumy) 8 00% 8 00%
Attrition rate

upto 30 years 20 00% 20 00%

from 31- 45 years 10 00% 10 00%

above 45 years 8 00% 8 00%

The discount rale indicated above reflects the estimaled timing and currency of benefit payments It is based on yields/ rates available on applicable
bonds as on the current valuation date The salary growth rate as indicated above is Company's best estimate of an increase in salary of the employees in
future years determined considering the general trend in inflation, seniority, promotions, past experience and other relevant factors such as demand and
supply in employment market, etc Attrition rate indicated above represents the Company's best estimate of Employee Turnover in future( other than on
account of retirement, death or disablement) determined considering various factors such as nature of business, retention policy, industry factors, past
experience, etc

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on Indian Assured Lives Mortality (JALM) (2012-14) rates

As at 3] March 2021, the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 8 years (31 March 2020 - 8 years)
Expected employer's contribution for the year ending 31 March 2022 is X 8 01 crotes (31 Maich 2021 -3 771 crores)
Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the'reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected
the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) 10 87 12 69 1021 1194
Future salary growth rate (1% movement) 1256 1095 1182 1029
Attrition rate (50% of attrition rates) 1142 1220 1070 1153
Mortality rate (10% of mortality rates) 1172 1172 1102 1102

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant In practice, this is unlikely to occur,
and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated When calculating the sensitivity of the defined bencfit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions the same methods (present value of defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting
period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liabilily recognised in the balance sheet G
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All figures are in  croies, except share data and unless otherwise staled)
CIN:-U74899DL1995PTC073692

Expected benefit payments
Undiscounted amount of expected benefit payments for next 8 years are as follows:

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Within 1 year 123
2-5 years 483
6-10 years 551
More than {0 years 1090

The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows:-

Investments with Life lnsurance Corporation of India

c) Defined contribution plans

The Company makes contribution towards employees' provident fund and employees' state insurance plan scheme Under the schemes, the Company is
required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost, as specified in the rules of the scheme, to these defined contribution schemes The Company

124
439
51t
1070
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
100% 100%

has recognised ¥ 4 42 crores (31 March 2020 5 33 crores) during the year as expense towards conlribution to these plans

Provident fund
Superannuation fund
Employees' state insurance scheme

For the year ended

31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

386 465
009 008
047 060
4.42 533
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34 Financial Instruments - Fair Values And Risk Management

a. Financial instruments by category

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the
fair value hierarchy -

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Amortised FYOCU/ Amortised FVOCl/
Cost FVPL Cost FVPL

Financial assets
(not measured at fair value)
Non-current
Loans 1.74 - 2.34 -
Other financial assets : 0.40 - - -
Current
Trade receivables 102.89 - 60.21 -
Cash and cash equivalents 22.89 - 25.06 -
Loans 0.70 - 0.86 -
Other financial assets 048 - 0.67

129.10 89.14
Financial liabilities
Non-current
Borrowings - - 12.65 -
Lease liabilities 26.17 - 27.95 -
Government grants 243 - 240 -
Current
Borrowings 9,52 - 0.05 -
(not measured at fair value)
Trade payables 109.50 - 92.11 B
Lease liabilities 1.77 1.25
Government grants 0.21 0.06
Other financial liabilities 3.79 - 12.33 -

153.39 - 148.79 2

Notes:
1., Fair value of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, current loans, other current financial assets, trade payables, other current
financial liabilities and current borrowings approximate their carrying amount, largely due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

2. Interest rates on long term borrowings (including current maturities) are equivalent to the market rate of interest. Accordingly, the
carrying value of such borrowings approximates fair value. The fair value of long-term borrowings is estimated by discounting future
cash flows using current rates (applicable to instruments with similar terms, currency, credit risk and remaining maturities) to discount
the future payouts.

3. Security deposits under non-current loans discounted at present value. Accordingly, the carrying value of the same approximates fair
value.

4. Fair value of all other non-current assets have not been disclosed as the change from carrying amount is inconsequential.

Fair Value Hierarchy

There are no financial assets and liabilities which needs to be classified under Level 1, level 2 and level 3. The impact of measurement
of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value as compared to amortised cost is not significant

Leded 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020

There are no transfers between Level I, Level 2 and Level 3 during Lh,c.-j'é'
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the ycar ended 31 March 2021
(Al figures are in T crore unless otherwise stated)
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Financial Instruments - Fair Values And Risk Management (Contd.)
b. Financial risk management

The Company, as active suppliers for the automobile industry expose its business and products to various market risks, credit risk and liquidity risk
The Company’s management structure with the main activities make necessary organised risk management system, The regulations, instructions,
implementation rules and in particular, the regular communication throughout the tightly controlled management process consisting of planning,
controlling and monitoring collectively form the risk management system used to define, record and minimise operating, financial and strategic risks
Below notes explain the sources of risks in which the Company is exposed to and how it manages the risks:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and arises principally from the Company's receivable from customers. The carrying amount of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk
exposure

(i

=

Trade receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characleristics of each customer. However, management also considers
the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry and country in which
customers operate

The Company has developed guidelines for the management of credit risk from trade receivables The Company’s primary customers are major Indian
automobile manufacturers original equipment manufactures (OEMs) with good credit ratings. Non-OEM clients are subjected to credit assessments as
a precautionary measure, and the adherence of all clients to payment due dates is monitored on an on-going basis, thereby practically eliminating the
risk of default

4

The Company's review also includes financial statements, industry information, promoter's background and in some cases bank references

Expected credit loss on trade receivable :

The Company's expected probability of default is insignificant as all major payments are received on due dales without any significant delays. Based
on internal assessment which is driven by historical experience/ current facts available in relation to default in collection thereof, the expected credit
loss for trade receivables due to delay in collection is estimaled to be insignificant. The Company has considered the impact of COVID-19 pandemic

during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 is (abulated below:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Opening provisions 0.04 008
Add: Provision made during the year 005 0.02
Less: Provision utilised during the year 0.03 -
Less: Excess provision written back 0.02 0.06
Closing provision 0.04 0.04

The Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receivable by the type of customers as at year end is as follows:

Carrying amount
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

OEM 63.53 33.52
Non - OEM 39.36 26,69
Total 102.89 60.21

Ageing in respect of trade receivables is as follows:

31 March 2021
Trade receivables Total Less than 3 3 -12 months 1-5 years Carrying amount
months
OEM 63,53 6338 015 -, 6353
Non OEM 3936 3934 002 - 3936
102.89 102.72 0.17 - 102.89

31 March 2020
Trade receivables Total Less than 3 3 -12 months 1-5 years Carrying amount

OEM 33.52 3352 - - 3352
Non OEM 26.69 26.53 0.16 - 26 69

60.21 60.05 0.16 - 60.21

' and believe that all debtors are sound and recoverable. While the amount of total allowance for credit loss is disclosed in note 9, the movement thereof
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All figures are in T crore unless otherwise stated)
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Loans and other financial asscts

a) The Company has given security deposits to Government departments for securing services from them. As these are well established organisations
and have strong capacity to meet the obligations, risk of default is negligible

b) The Company provides loans to employees for their personal needs and repayment by deduction from the salary of the employees Loans are given
only to those employees who have served a minimum period as per the approved policy of the Company. The expected probability of default is
negligible as these loans are recovered on regular basis

c) All the export incentives are receivable from Government and therefore expected probability of default is insignificant

d) The Compant does not foresee any concerns in recoverability of Fixed Deposits with bank

The Company's exposure to credit risk for loans and other financial assets is as follows

Carrying amount

31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Security deposits ) 1.66 2:52
Loans to employees 0.78 0.68
Other financial assets 087 0.67
3.31 3.87

Cash and cash equivalents

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invests and deposit money with banks with high repute. The Company
doesn't have any problem in recovering of the financial assets
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All figures are in  crore unless olhenvise stated)
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Financial Instruments - Fair Values And Risk Management (Contd.)
Financial risk management (contd.)

(ii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash
or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities, when
they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage 1o the Company's reputation. Long term cash flow
requirement is monitored through long term plans. In the line of long term planning, short term plans are reviewed on quarterly basis and compared with actual position
on monthly basis to assess the performance of the Company and liquidity position

The Company monitors the level of expected cash inflows on lrade receivables and loans together with expected cash outflows on trade payables and other financial
liabilities. In addition to this, the Company maintains the following line of credit:

The Company is having credit limit from banks on account of borrowings, working capital, cash credit etc , of ¥ 29 50 crores (Previous year ¥ 62 crores and USD 0.40
crores).

Exposure to liguidity risk

The following are the remaining undiscounted contractual matwities of financial liabilities including interest at the reporting date:

31 March 2021 Contractual cash flow
Total On demand Less than 3 3-12 I-Syears More than5  Carrying
months months years amount
Total financial liabilities
Rupee loan fiom banks 952 952 - - - . 952
Employee related payables 379 - 379 - - Y= 379
Trade payables 109.50 - 109 50 - - - 109 50
122.81 9.52 113.29 - - - 122.81
31 March 2020 Contractual cash flow
Total On demand Less than 3 3-12 1-Syears More than5  Carrying
months months years amount
Total financial liabilitics
Foreign currency loan from banks 089 - 089 - - - 089
Rupee loan from banks 16.92 0.05 - 511 11.76 - 1692
Payables for property, plant and equipment 344 - 344 - - - 344
Interest accrued on borrowings but not due 001 - 001 ~ . - 001
Employee related payables 371 - 371 - E - 371
Trade payables 9211 - 9211 - L . 9211
117.07 0.05 100.15 5.11 11.76 - 117.07
Derivative instruments
Forward contracts 637 - 6.37 - - - 637
6.37 - 6.37 - - . 6.37
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Mindarika Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All figures are in T crore unless otherwise stated)
CIN:-U74899DL1995PTC073692

Financial Instruments - Fair Values And Risk Management (Cond.)
Fi ial risk t (contd.)

(iii) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as pricing, currency risk and interest rate risk- will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of
financial instruments The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposure within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retum
All such transactions are carried out within the guidelines set by the Company

Price risk
Fluctuation in commodity price in market affects directly and indirectly the price of raw material and components used by the Company The key raw material for the
Company’s is copper, plastic and silver. The Company has arrangements with its major customers for passing on the price impact

Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which sales, purchases and borrowings are denominated and
functional currency of the Company, i.e. INR (%) The currencies in which these transactions are primarily denominated are US dollar, Japanese Yen, GBP and Euro. The
cunency risk related to the principal amount of the USD loan has been fully hedged using currency swap contract that mature on the same dates as foans

Details of hedged foreign currency exposures:

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Currency Amount In Amountin 3 Currency Amount In Amount in
Foreign (crore) Foreign Currency (crore)
Currency (in crore)
(in crore)
Trade Payables JPY - - JPY 650 447
Trade Payables USD ~ - USD 003 1.90

Details of unhedged foreign currency exposures;

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Amount In mountTh
Particulars Foreign Amount in ¥ . Amount in ¥
Currency Currency Foreign Currency
Currency (crore) : (crore)
) (in crore)
(in crore)
Borrowings (foreign currency loans) UsSD - - USD 00! 089
USD 01l 832 USD 005 383
IPY 559 3.71 IPY 7.50 522
Trade payables # Euro 0.00 002 Euto 0.00 0.05
THB 0.00 0.00 THB . -
USD 0.03 227 USD 0.01 039
Advance to suppliers # Euro 0.00 023 Euro 0,00 0.00
JPY 031 021 JPY 1.18 082
GBP 0.00 001 GBP . -
USD 0.03 241 UsD 0.05 354
Trade receivables Euro - - Euro 0,01 1.20
JPY .72 1.14 JPY 128 0.89

# Amount is below rounding off threshold
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Mindarika Private Limited

Nates forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All fipures are in T crore unless otherwise stated)

CIN:-U74899DL1995PTC073692

Sensitivity Analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening/ (weakening) of USD, JPY, GBP, SGD, THB and EURO agains! INR (%) at the end of the year, would have affected the measwrement
of financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amount shown below. This analysis assumes that all other

vatiables, in particulal interest rates, remain constant

Particulars Change in currency rate Year end rates rCal:i:gcs . Net exposure blitt'"‘::c‘ fﬂ’;l():;l;;t) E::::‘t:: (I;VNOS;

As at 31 March 2021 INR/USD Increases by 5 % 72 40 362 (0.05) (0.18) (0.14)
INR/USD decreases by 5 % 72.40 (3.62) (0.05) 0.18 0.14
INR/SGD Increases by 5 % 54.43 272 - - -
INR/SGD decieases by 5 % 54.43 (2.72) E . -
INR/GBP Increases by 5 % 99.62 4.98 0.00 0.00 0.00
INR/GBP decreases by 5 % 99 62 (498) 0.00 (0.00) (0.00)
INR/JPY Increases by 5 % 0.66 0.03 (3.56) (0.12) (0.09)
INR/JPY decreases by 5 % 0.66 (0.03) (3.56) 0.12 0.09
INR/THB Increases by 5 % 234 012 (0.00) (0.00) (0.00)
INR/THB decreases by § % 234 (0.12) (0.00) 0.00 0.00
INR/Euro Increases by 5 % 8531 427 000 001 001
INR/Euio decieases by 5 % 8531 (427) 0.00 (0.01) (001)

As at 31 March 2020 INR/USD Increases by 5 % . 75.39 -/ (06.01) (0 04) (0.03)
INR/USD decreases by 5 % 7539 3.77) (0.01) 0.04 0.03
INR/SGD Increases by 5 % 5296 265 - - -
INR/SGD decreases by 5 % 52 96 (2.65) - - -
INR/GBP Increases by 5 % 9308 4.65 -
INR/GBP decreases by 5 % 93.08 (4.65) - - =
INR/APY Increases by 5 % 0.70 0.03 (5.03) (0.18) 0.13)
INR/JPY decreases by 5 % 0.70 (0.03) (5.03) 0.18 0.13
INR/THB Increases by 5 % 2.30 0.12 - -
INR/THB decteases by 5 % 2.30 (0.12) - - -
INR/Euro Increases by 5 % 83.05 4.15 001 0.06 004
INR/Euro decreases by 5 % 83.05 (4.15) 0.01 (0.06) (0.04)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will flucluate because of changes in market interest rates

exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s debt obligations with floating interest rates
The Company tries to manage the risk partly by entering into fixed-rate instruments and partly by borrowing at a floaling rate

Exposure to Interest vate risk
The Company has the following exposure in intetest bearing borrowings as on reporting date:
As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Fixed interest borrowings - .
Variable interest borrowings 1781
Total borrowings - 17.81

The Company’s

The Company's fixed rate borrowings are canied at amortised cost. They are, therefore, not subject to intetest rate risk since neither the carrying amount nor the futwe

cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates

Variable interest borrowings include Joan from banks which cairy MCLR/ LIBOR based interest rate

Note: Obligation against bills discounted and remaining unpaid as at year ended 31 March 2021 amounting to ¥ 9.52 crores is not interest bearing

Scnsitivity annlysis

A reasonably possible change of 0. 5% in interest rate at the reporting date, would have affected profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all

other variables remain constant

Profit / (loss)

Year ended 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease
31 March 2021 - -
31 March 2020 00] 0.ol1)
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All figures are in T crore unless otherwise stated)
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35 Segments Reporting

a. Basis for segmentation

An operating segment is a component ol the Company that engages in business activities from which il may earn revenues and incur
expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company's other components, and for which discrete
financial information is available

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of switches which constitutes a single business segment, accordingly,
disclosure requirement of Ind AS 108, “Operating Segments” are not required to be given. Results of the Company are reviewed regularly
by the Company's Board of Directors/Chiet Operating decision maker to assess the performance of the Company and to make decisions

accordingly

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

Details of Turnover

b. Major customer

Sale of goods 649.27 707.08
Sale of services 533 101
654.60 TOH.09

Revenue from two customers which individually constitute more than 10% of the Company's total revenue is 42% (Previous year 52%)

¢. Segment Reporting -Geographical segment
The analysis of geographical segment is based on geographical location of the Company:

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

31 March 2021

Revenue

India 642 40 68759

Outside India 1220 20.50

Total 654.60 708.09
As at As at

31 March 2020

Non current assets*

31 March 2021

[ndia 170.02 190.27
Outside India
Total 170.02 190.27
* excluding financial instruments

As at As at

31 March 2020

Trade receivables

India 9934 5457
Outside India 3,55 565
Total 102.89 60.22
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All figures are in T crore unless otherwise stated)
CIN:-U74899DL1995PTC073692

36 Research and development expenses * For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Salaries and wages 4.11 458
Contributions to provident fund and other funds 0.25 031
Staff welfare 0.08 0.05
Travelling and conveyance 002 0.31
Miscellaneous expenses 0.83 1.67
5.29 6.92

* Excludes capital expenditure of T Nil ( Previous year ¥ 0.44 ciores)

37 The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing
regulation under Sections 92-92F of the Income-tax Act, 1961. Since, the law requires existence of such information and documentation to
be contemporaneous in nature, the Company continuously updates its documentation to determine whether the transactions entered into
with the associated enterprises during the financial year on an arm's length basis. The management is of the opinion that such transactions
are at arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax

expense and that of provision for taxation
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
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38 Related party transactions

Description of relationship

(a) Relaled party and nature of related party relationship where conlrol exists:-
Holding Company
Enterprise having sub;tmlial inlerest in the Company
(b} Related party and nature of related party with which transactions have taken place during the year:-

Fellow subsidiaries

Enterprises in which directors/members of the Company can exercise significant influence

Key Management Personne! (KMP)

{¢) Details of related puiriy transactions during the year

Names of related parties

Minda Industries Ltd

Tokai Rika Co Ltd, Japan

Minda Distribution & Services Ltd

Minda Kyoraku Limited

PT Minda Asean Automolive

Minda Storage Batteries Pvt Ltd

Minda Katolac Electronics Services Pvt Lid
MI Torica India Private Lid

MITIL Polymer Private Ltd

PT Minda Trading

Nirmal K Minda (HUF}

Minda Investment Ltd

Shankar Moulding Ltd

Minda Projects Lid

Minda Nexgen Tech Ltd

Tokai Rika (Thailand) Co Ltd

Tokai Rika Minda India Pvit Ltd
Tokai Rika Creale Corporation (Torica)
Tokai Rika Co Llid, Philippines
Toyoda Gosei Minda India Pvt Ltd
Tokairika Indonesia

Denso Ten Minda India Pvt Ltd
Minda Sioneridge Instruments Lid
Samaira Engineering

Minda 1 Connect Pvt Ltd

Minda Industries

Minda Nabtesco Automotive Pvt Ltd
Minda Onkyo India Pvt Ltd
Shreeaumji Real Eslate SEZ Pvt_ Ltd
Spectrum Techno Construction Pvt Lid
Shreeaumji Habitalion Pvt Ltd

Mr Nirmal K Minda

Mr Takehiko Niwa (up to 28 January 2020)
Mr Ravi Mehra

Mr Anand K Minda

Ms Deepali Chandhoke

Mr_ Hidehito Araki

Mr Kazuhiko Noguchi

Mr Hiroyasu Goto (w e f 28 January 2020)

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

(i) Revenue

Holding Company
- Minda Industries Ltd

Sale of goods
Sale of services
Miscellaneous income

Enferprise having substantial interest in the Company
Sale of goods
- Tokai Rika Co Ltd, Japan

Fellow subsidiaries

Sale of goods

-Minda Distribution & Services Ltd

-Minda Katolac Elecironics Services Pvt Ltd
-PT Minda Trading

-Minda Kyoraku Limited

Sale of services
-PT Minda Trading
-Minda Kyoraku Limited

Miscellaneans income
-Minda Katolac Electronics Services Pvt Ltd
-MITIL Polymers Pvt Lid (absolute Z 2,175 for 3| Match 2020)
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(All figures are in T crores, except shate data and unless otheiwise sfated)
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38 Related parties{cont..)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Enterprises in which directors/members of the Company can exercise significant influence
Sale of goods
- Tokai Rika Minda India Pvt Lid 3744 slel
-Tokai Rika Creale Corporation (Torica) 529 483
-Tokai Rika (Thailand) Co Ltd 087 128
- Shankar Moulding Ltd 008 012
- Toyoda Gosei Minda India Pvt Ltd 2566 2322
- Minda 1 Connect Pvt Lid - 005
Sale of services
- Tokai Rika Minda India Pvt Ltd 003
- Shankar Moulding Lid (absolute ¥ 33,745 for 31 March 2021) 0.00
- Minda | Connect Pvt Lid (absolute Z 6,750 for 31 March 2021) 0.00
- Minda Nabtesco Automotive Pvt Lid (absolute ¥ 3,500 for 31 Maich 2021) 0.00
- Toyoda Gosei Minda India Pvt Lid 001
Miscellaneous income
- Shankar Moulding Ltd 0.05 0.05
- Tokai Rika Minda India Pvt Lid 055 0.60
- Minda Investments Ltd 0.08
- Denso Ten Minda India Pvt Ltd 002 -
(ii) Reimbursement of expenses (received)
Holding company
Employee benefit expenses 019
Miscellaneous expenses 010 007
Enterprises having substantial interest in the Company
Miscellaneous expenses
- Tokai Rika Co Ltd, Japan 085 116
Fellow Subsidiaries
-Minda Katolac Electronics Services Pvt Ltd 012
Eunterprises in which directors/members of (he Company can exercise significant influence
Miscellaneous expenses
-Roki Minda Co Pvt Ltd (absolule 2,400 for 31 March 2020) 000
Key Management Personnel
Rent 002 002
(iii) Sale of property, plant and equipment
Holding company
- Minda Industries Limited 008
(iv) Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Enterprises having substantial interest in the Company
- Tokai Rika Co Ltd, Japan 090 009
Enterprises in which directors/members of (e Company can exercise significant influence
- Minda Projects Ltd 037
- Shankar Moulding Ltd 003
(v) Expenses
Holding company
Purchase of raw materials and components 388 375
Legal and professional 1074 14 65
Miscellaneous expenses 167 317
Rent 076 0387
Enterprises having substantial interest in the Company
Purchase of raw materials and componen(s
- Tokai Rika Co Ltd, Japan (absolute ¥ 22,748 for 31 March 2021} 000 004
Legal and professional
- Tokai Rika Co Ltd, Japan - 008
Royalty
- Tokai Rika Co Ltd, Japan 406 408
StafT-Ex Gratia
- Tokai Rika Co Ltd, Japan 183 197
I'T Maintenance expensgs
- 000

- Tokai Rika Co Ltd, Japan (absolute ¥ 18,773 for 31 March 2020)
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Notes lorming part of the financial statements lor the year ended 31 Maich 2021
(All figures are in ¥ ciores, except share dala and unless otherwise siated)
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38 Related parties (cont..)

Expenses (conl...)

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Fellow Subsidiary
Purchase of raw materials and components

-Minda Katolac Electronics Services Pvt Lid 1192
-MITIL Polymer Private Limited 1315
Employee benelit expenses
-Minda Kyoraku Limited
Miscellaneous expenses
-Minda Kyoraku Limited 002
-Minda Kalolac Electronics Services Pvt Ltd 019
Enterprises in which directors/members of (he Company can exercise significant influence
Purchase of raw malterials and componenis
- Tokai Rika Co Ltd, Philippines 095
- Tokai Rika (Thailand) Co Ltd 569
-Tokai Rika Minda India Pvt Ltd 6726
- Tokai Rika Create Corporation (Torica) 1230
- Shankar Moulding Ltd = 1203
- Tokairika Indonesia 032
- Denso Ten Minda India Pvt Ltd (absolute ¥ 1,200 fo1 31 Maich 2021) 000
Rent
- Minda Investment Ltd 292
- Minda I[ndustries (Firm} 00l
- Toyoda Gosei Minda India Pvt Ltd
Miscellaneous expenses
-Minda Project Ltd 0.02
- Shankar Moulding Ltd 0.08
-Tokai Rika Minda India Pvt Ltd 0.08
- Shreeaumji Real Estate SEZ Pvt. Lid (refer note 30(c))
- Spectrum Techno Conslruction Pvt Ltd (absolute ¥ 5,572 for 31 Maich 2020) (refer note 30(c}))
- Shreeaumji Habitation Pvt Ltd (refer note 30(c)) .
- Minda 1 Coanecl Pvt Ltd (absolute Z 14,400 for 31 Maich 2021) 0.00
Repair pod maintainanee
- Minda Project Limited
Employee benelit expenses
- Toyoda Gosel Minda India Pvt Lid
- Minda Onkyo India Pvt Lid
- Minda Storage Batteries Pvt Ltd (absolute T 42,656 for 31 Maich 2020)
Stafl Exgratia
- Minda Onkyo India Pvt Lid 008
Key Management Personnel#
Managerial Remuneration
- Mr Nirmal K Minda 065
- Mr Takehiko Niwa
- Mr Ravi Mehra ## 245
- Mr Hiroyasu Goto 029
Director's sitling fee
Ms Deepali Chandhoke (absolule ¥ 45,000 for 31 March 2020} 001
Mr Hidehito Araki 001
(vi) Payment of dividend
Holding company
- Minda Industries Ltd 334
Enterprises having substantial interest in the Company
- Tokai Rika Co Ltd, Japan 242
Key Management Personnel
- Mr Nirmal K Minda 078
# Does nol include provisions/contributions towards gratuity, p d ab as applicable, as such provisions are for the Company as a whole
## Managerial remuneration paid by Minda Industries Limited and reimbursed by the (‘ pany as part of deputalion ag|
& Q O ™\
<\
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(All figures are in Z ciores, except shaie data and unless otherwise slated)
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(i)

(ii)

(iv)

Note:

r-----------F

Holding Company
- Minda Indusiries Ltd

Enterprises having substantial interest in the Company
- Tokai Rika Co Ltd, Japan

Fellow subsidiaries

- Minda Distribution & Services Ltd

- Minda Katolac Electronics Services Pvi Ltd

- Minda Kyoraku Limited

- PT Minda Trading

- MITIL Polymers Pvt Ltd (absolute 1,180 for 31 March 2020)

Enterprises in which directors/members of the Company can exercise significant influence

- Shankar Moulding Ltd

- Tokai Rika Minda India Pvt Ltd

- Tokai Rika Create Corporalion (Torica) =
- Tokai Rika (Thailand) Co. Lid

- Toyoda Gosei Minda India Pvi Ltd

- Minda 1 Connect Pvt Ltd

- Denso Ten Minda [ndia Pvt Ltd

Loans- security deposits

o

Enterprises in which directors/members of the Company can exercise si influence

- Minda Investment Ltd

Advance (o suppliers
Holding Company
- Minda [ndustries Ltd

Enferprises in which directors/members of the Company can exercise significant influence

- Shankar Moulding Lid
- Minda Project Ltd
- Tokai Rika Minda India Pvi Ltd

Trade payables
Holding Company
- Minda Industries Lid

Enterprises having substantial interest in the Company
- Tokai Rika Co Ltd, Japan

Fellow subsidiaries
- Minda Katolac Electronics Services Pvt Ltd
- MITIL Polymer Private Limited

Enferprises in which directors/members of the Company can exercise significant influence

- Shankar Moulding Ltd

- Tokai Rika Co Ltd, Philippines

- Tokai Rika (Thailand) Co Ltd

-Tokai Rika Creale Corporation (Torica)
- Tokai Rika Minda India Pvi Ltd

- Tokairika Indonesia

- Minda Project Lid

- Minda Investment Ltd

Absolute amount in  shown as the 1ounded off amount in  crores is nil

1.58

0.1l

0.07

032

003
822
075
ah[is

0.02

027

032

048

005
487

130

251
210

265
032
205
1.33
1891
0.0l

Based on the analysis done by the independent consullant the Company is of the view that all related party transactions are done on arm's length basis
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38 Related parties (cont..)
(d) Balance ling at (he end of the year
Particulars Year ended Year ended
riied 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
{i) Trade receivables

078

156
024
ool
197
000

003
641
089
014
1.60
011

050

032

045
0tl

340

097

052
336

3Bl
018
074
299
1052
003
145
034
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stes forming pavt of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
1l figures are in T crore unless otherwise stated)
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39 Share-based compensation
The shareholders of the Parent Company had approved the UNO Minda Employee Stock Option Scheme — 2019 (hercin teferied as UNOMINDA ESOS-2019)
through postal ballot resolution daied March 25, 2019
Duing the previous year, the NRC of holding company has approved and ganted options to Eligible Employees of the Parent Company and its Subsidiaties. The
plan envisaged grant of stock options to eligible cmployees al markel price in accordance with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits) Regulations, 2014

This scheme provided for conditional grant of Performance Shares at nominal value to eligible management employees as determined by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee from time to time. The performance measutes under this scheme include Group achieving the target market Capitalisation The
maximum number of equity shares to be allotted under the scheme are 1,01,020 at an exercise price of €325/- each. The scheme is monitored and supervised by
{he Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the holding company in compliance with the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 and amendinents thereof {rom time to lime

Accordingly, the expense pertaining to the Company is recharged by the parent company

The terms and conditions related to the grant of the share options arc as follows:

Scheme Year Date of Number of | Vesting conditions | Exercise period | Exercise price | Fair value of the
Grant options (%) per share option on the
granted date of grant )
per share
Minda Employee Stock Option 2019-20 16-May-19 1,001,020  |Achieving target of| 2 Year from the 325/- 41.31/-

Scheme 2019 markel capitalization| date of vesting
of the Company on or

before 31 May 2022

The number of share options under stock benefit plan is as follows:

Scheme Year | Outstanding | Granted |Forfeited/laps| Exercised during the| Exercisable at | Outstanding at d
at the during the | ed/expired year the end of the | the end of the
beginning of year during the year year
the year vear i
Minda Employee Stock | 2019-20 - | 1.01.020 - - - 1,01,020
Option Scheme 2019 | 2020-21 101,020 . - - - 11.01.020 |

Fair valuation
The parent company has provided the {air value of Share based payment cost that have been done by an independent valuer on the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes Model

The following assumptions were used for calculation of fair value of grants:

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Risk- free interest rate (%) 7.13% 713%
Expected life of options (years) [(year of vesting) + (contractual iyea AR

option term)/2]

Expected volatility (%) 41.00% 41.00%
Dividend yield 0.63% 0.63%

The Risk free rate being considered for the calculation is the interest 1ate applicable for a maturity equal to the expected life of (he options
based on the zero-coupon yield curve for Government Securities or 10 years Government bonds. Volatility calculation is a measure of the
amount by which a price has fluctuated or is expected to fluctuate during the period The measure volatility is used in option- pricing mode! is
the annualized standard deviation of the continuously compounded rate of the retum of the stock over a period of time. The dividend yield for
the year is derived by dividing the dividend for the period with the current market price

The above disclosure is based on the information, to the extent available with the Company

Yecar ended Year ended
Amount recognised in statement of profil and loss: 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Employee stock option expenses 0.14 0.12
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Mindarvika Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Al figutes are in T crore unless otherwise stated)
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40 Change in classification
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has separately presented the 1ight of use asscts under non-curient assets fiom property, plant and equipment to
reflect more appropriate presentation in balance sheet Comparative amounts in notes forming part of the financial slatements has been reclassilied for consistency
As a result, amount of Z 18 98 crotes as at 31 March 2020 has been sepatately piesented

Futther, the Company has sepaiately presented (he lease liabilities under financial liabilities fiom other financial liabilities to reflect more approptiate presentation in
balance sheet, Comparative amounts in notes forming patt of the financial statements has been 1eclassified for consistency, As a 1esull, amount of

72920 croves (Z 1.25 crotes as cuent and 2 27 95 crores as non-current) as at 31 Maich 2020 has been sepaiately presented

4

Impact of COVID-19 on financial statements

In view of the pandemic relating to COVID-19, the Company has considered internal and external information and has performed an analysis bascd on current
estimates while assessing the provision towaids employee benefits and 1ecoverability ol right-of-use assets, trade receivables, non curreni assets and other cusrent
and financial assets, for any possible impact on the Financial Statements. The Company has also assessed the impact of this whole situation on its capital and
financial 1esources, profitability, liquidity position, internal financial rebouing contiols etc. and is of the view that based on its present assessment this situation does
not materially impact the financial statements. However, the actual impact of COVID19 on the financial statement may differ fiom that estimated due to unforeseen
circumstances and the Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future cconomic conditions

42 The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential assent in
September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which (he Code will come into effect has not been notified The
Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period when the Code becomes effective

The notes referred to above form an integral patt of these financial statements

For and on behalf of the Boaid of Directors of
ik Privinte
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